IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT .
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC. and v
EMORY UNIVERSITY, ,.Lt-’.i “&:z‘}% Vo
Plaintiff:
| aintiffs, AUB 167012
v Civil Action Nd.: U.S.B.C. 8.0, N7,
~_CASHIERS
LUPIN LIMITED,
| Defendant.

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT

Plaintiffs Gilead Sciences, Inc. (“Gilead”) and Emory University (“Emory”)
(collectively, “Plaintiffs”) for its complaint against Lupin Ltd. (“Lup:in”), hereby allege as
follows:

Nature of Action

1. This is an action for patent infringcment under the patent laws of the
United States, Title 35, United States Code.
The Parties
2. Gilead is a cérporation organized and existing under the Igws of the State
vof Delaware, having a principél pléce of business at 333 Lakesidé Drive, Fbster City, California
94404.
3. Emory is a non-profit corporation of the State of Georgia, haVing an office

at 201 Dowman Drive, Atlanta, Georgia 30322.
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4. On information and belief, defendant Lupin is an Indian corporation
having its principal place of business at 159 CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (E), Mumbai 400 098,

' India.

Jurisdiction and Venue

5. This action arises under the Patent Laws of the United States and tﬁe Food
and Drug Laws of the United States, Titles 35 and 21, United States Code. Jurisdiction is basedv
on 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1338(a).

6. On information and belief, this Court has personal jurisdiction .dver Lupin.

7. On infonnation and beiief, Lupin derives substantial revenue from selling
various pharmaceutical drug products and doing business thrbughout the United States, including
in New York and this District.

8. On informétion and belief, Lupin maﬂufacturés pharmaceutical drug
products that are sold and used throughout the United States, including in New York and this
District. |

9. On information and belief, residehts of the State of New York purchase
pharmaceutical drug products from Lupin in the ‘State of New York.

10.  On information and belief, Lupin, itself or fhroﬁgh one of its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, has authorized distributo.rs in the State of New York to distribute Lupin’s
pharmaceutical drug products throughout the State of New York.

11.  On information and belief, Lupin’s submission Qf Abbreviated New Drug
Application (“ANDA”) No. 204131, discussed bel'ow,. indicates its intention to engage in the

commercial manufacture, use, sale and/or importation of products that will compete directly with
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Gilead’s Truvada® product, which is currently being sold throughout the United States,
including in New York and this District.

12. On information and belief, Lupin has previously éonsented to personal -
jurisdiction in this District and has previo'usly filed declaratory judgment claims in this District.

13. . Venue is proper in this District under 28 USC § 1391(b), (c), (d), and 28
U.S.C. § 1400(b).

Background

14. Gilead is the holder of New Drug Application (“NDA”) No. 21-752 which
~ relates to tablets containing 200 mg of emtricitabine and 300 mg of tenofovir disoproxil
fumarate. On August 2, 2004, the United States Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”)
approved the use of the tablets described in NDA No. 21-752 for the treatment of HIV-1-
infection in adults. These tablets are prescribed and sold in the United States under the
trademark Truvada®.

15.  United States Patent No. 6,642,245 (“the *245 Patent,” copy attached as
Exhibit A), entitled “Antiviral Activity and Resolution of 2—Hydroxymethyl~5-(5-ﬂuor0cytosin— '
1-y1)-1,3-oxathiolane,” was duly and legally issued by the United States Patent and Trademark
Office on November 4, 2003. The }’24_5 »Patent claims, inter alia, methods for treating HIV
infection in humans with emtricitabine (one of the active ingredients in Truvada®), and is listed
in the Approved Drug Products with Therapeutic Equivalence Evaluations (“FDA Orange
Book”) for Tfuvada®.

16. - United States Patent No. 6,703,396 (“the>’396 Patent,” copy attached as .
Exhibit B), entitled “Methéd of Resolution and Antiviralv Activity of 1,3-Oxathiolane Nucleoside

Enantiomers,” was duly and legally issued by the United States Patent and Trademark Office on



Case 1:12-cv-06293-RJS Document1 Filed 08/16/12 Page 4 of 14

March 9, 2004. The ’396 Patent élaims, inter alia, emtricitabine (one of the active ingredients in
Truvada®), and is listed in the FDA Orange Book for Truvada®.

17. United States Patent No. 5,814,639 (“the 639 Patent,” copy attached as
Exhibit C), entitled “Method for the synthesis, compositions and use of 2’-Deoxy-5-Fluoro-3’-
Thiacytidine and related cbmpounds,” was duly and legally issued by the United States Patent
and Trademark Office on September 29, 1998. The *639 Patent claims, inter alia, emtricitabine
(one of the active ingredients in Truvada®), and is listed in the FDA Orange Book for
Truvada®.

18.  Emtricitabine is a compound that has a molecular formula of

CsH1oFN30;3S, and which has the following chemical structure:

L \(_7/\014

19.  Emtricitabine can be referred to by any of several chemical names. The
chemical name.given to emtricitabine in the Truvada® label is “5-fluoro-1-(2R,5S5)-[2-
(hydroxymethyl)-1,3-oxathiolan-5-yl]cytosine.” Two chemical names recited for emtricitabine
in the *245 Patent are “(-)-B-L-2-hydroxymethyl-5-(5-fluorocytosin-1-yl)-1,3-oxathiolane” and
“B-L-2-hydroxymethyl-5-(5-fluorocytosin-1-yl)-1,3-oxathiolane.” Two chemical names recited
for emtricitabine in the ’396 Patent are “(—)-cis-4-amino-5-fluoro-1-(2-hydroxymethyl-1,3-
oxathiolane-5-yl)-(1H)-pyrimidin-2-one” and “(-)-enantiomer of cis-4-amino-5-ﬂu6ro—1~(2-

hydroxymethyl-1,3 -oxathiolané-S -yD-(1H)-pyrimidin-2-one.”
| 26. The ﬁamed inventors on the ’245, ’396,} and ’639 Patents are Dennis C.

Liotta, Raymond F. Schinazi and Woo-Baeg Choi.



Case 1:12-cv-06293-RJS Document1 Filed 08/16/12 Page 5 of 14

21.  Dennis C. Liotta, Raymond F. Schinazi and Woo-Baeg Choi assigned the
"245, °396, and *639 Patents to Emory.

22.  Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Gilead and Emory, Gilead
has substantial rights in the *245, 396, and ’639 Patents, including but not limited to, rights
assoclated with being a licensee of the "245, 7396, and *639 Patents, and the right to sue for
infringement of the °245, *396, and *639 Patents.

COUNT1
Infringeme_nt of U.S. Patent No. 6,642,245

23.  Plaintiffs fepeat and reallege paragraphs 1-22 abéve as if set forth herein.

24.  On information and belief, Lupin submitted or caused to be submitted an
Abb;eviated New Drug Application (“ANDA”), specifically ANDA No. 204131, to the FDA
seeking approval fo engage in the commercial manufacture, use, sale and importation of tablets
containing 200 mg of emtricitabine and 300 mg of tenofovir disoprokil fumarate.

| 25. On information and belief, ANDA No. 20413 1. seeks apprqval to

manufacture, use, sell énd import emtricitabine for the purpose of treating HIV infection.

26. By letter dated July 13, 2012 i)ursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 355(3)(2)(B)(ii) (the
“July 13, 2012 Notice Letter”), Lupin notified Plaintiffs that it had submitted ANDA No. 204131
to the FDA seeking apprloval to engage in the commercial manufacture, use, sale and importation |
~of téblets containing 200 mg of emtricitabine and 300 mg of tenofovir disoproxil fumarate prior
to the expiration of the *245 Patent.

| 27.  Inits] uly 13, 2012 Notice Letter, Lupin notified Plaintiffs that, as a part

of ANDA No. 204131, it had filed a certification of the type deséribed in21 U.S.C. §
3550)(2)(A)(Vii)(IV) (“Paragraph IV”) with respect to the *245 Patent. This statutory secﬁon

requires, inter alia, certification by the ANDA applicant, in its opinion and to the best of its
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knoWledge, that the subject patent, here tﬁe ’245 Patent, “is invalid or will not be infringed by

the manufacture, use or sale of the new drug for which the application is submitted . . . .” The
statute (21 U.S.C. § 355(G)(2)(B)(iv)(ID)) also requires a Paragraph IV Notice Letter to “include a
detailed statement of the factual and legal basis vof the opinion of the applicant that the patent is
invalid or will not be infringed.” The FDA Rules and Regulatiéns (21 C.F.R. § 314.95(c)(6))
further require that the detailed statement include, “(i) [f]or each claim of a patent alleged not to -
be infringed, a full and detailed explanation of why the claim is not infringed” and “(ii) [f]or |
each claim of a patent alleged to be invalid or unenforceable, a full and detailed explanation of
the grounds supporting the allegations'.” |

28.  Lupin alleged in its Jﬁly 13, 2012 Notice Letter that Claims 1-22 of the
’245 Patent are both invalid and would not be infringed by the commercial nian‘ufacture, use,
sale and importation of its proposed product that is the subject of ANDA No. 204131.

29.  Despite this assertion, the July 13,2012 Notice‘ Letter doés not provide thé
full and detailed statement of Lupin’s factual and legal basis to support its non;infringement and
invalidity allegations as to the *245 Patent.

30. Accordingly, the July 13, 2012 Notice Letter f‘ai‘ls' to comply wi’_ch the law,
as specified in 21 U.S.C.vl§ 355(j) and FDA rules and regulations, as specified in 21 C.F.R. §
314.95. | |

31. By filing ANDA No. 204131 under 21 U.S.C. § 3550) for the purposes of
obtaining approval to engage in the commerciallmanufacture, use, sale and/or importation of
tablets containing 200 mg of emtricitabine and 300 mg of tenbfqvir disoproxil fumarate before
the *245 Patent’s expiration, Lupin has committed an act of infringement of the *245 Patent

under 35 U.S.C. § 271()(2).
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i 32.  On information and belief, Lupin lacked a good faith basis for alleging
invalidity when ANDA No. 204131 was filed and when the Paragraph IV certiﬁcation w;':ls made.
Lupin’s ANDA and Paragraph IV certification is a wholly unjustified infringement of the 245
Patent.

33.  Lupin’s submission of ANDA No. 204131 and service of the July 13,
2012 Notice Letter indicates a refusal to change its current course of action.
34, On information and belief, thé commercial manufacture, use, sale and/or
importation of tablets contdining 200 mg of emtricitabine and 300 mg of tenofovir disoproXil
fumarate for which Lupin seeks approval in ANDA No. 2041’3 1, if approved, will infringe one or
more claims of the *245 Patent. |
35.  On information and bel'ief, the tablets containing 200 mg of emtricitabine
and 300 mg of tenofovir disoproxil fumarate for the use for which Lupin seeks approval in
ANDA No. 204131, if approved, will bbe administered to human patients in an‘.effective ‘amount
for treéting HIV infection. This administration will infringe on¢ or more claims of the *245
P.at'ent. On information and belief, this administration will oécur at Lupin’s active behest and
with its intent, knév&ledge and encouragement. On information and belief, Lupin will actively
¢ncourage, aid and abet this admi.nistration with knowledge that it is in contravention of
Plaintiffs’ rights under the *245 Patent. Fuﬁher, by ﬁliﬁg ANDA No. 204131 with a Paragraph
IV certification, Lupin adlﬁits that it has knowledge of the ’245 Patent. |
36.  The July 13, 2012 Notice Letter does not allege and doeé nof address
unenforceability of any cléims of the *245 Patent. By not addressing unenforceability of any
- claims of the *245 Patent in its July 13, 2012 Notice Letter, Lupih admits that all of the claims of

the 245 Patent are enforceable.
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COUNT 2
Infringement of U.S. Patent No. 6,703.396

37.  Plaintiffs repeat and reallege paragraphs 1-22 and 24 above as if set forth
herein.

38.  On information and belief, ANDA No. 204131 seeks approval to
manufacture, use, sell and import emtricitabine for the purpose of treating HIV infection.

39. By letter dated July 13, 2012 pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 355()(2)(B)(ii) (the |
“July 13, 2012 Notice Letter”), Lupin notified Plaintiffs that it had submitted ANDA No. 204131
to the FDA éeeking approval to eﬁgage in the commercial manufacture, use, sale and importation
of tablets containing 200 mg of emtricitabine and 300 mg of tenofovir disoproxil fumarate prior |
to thé expiration of the 396 Patent.

40. In its July 13, 2012 Notice Letter, Lupin notified Plaintiffs that, asa part
of its ANDA No. 204131, it had filed.a Paragraph IV certification wifh respecf to the *396
Patent. This >statutory section requires, infer alia, certification by the ANDA applicant, in» its
opinion and to thé best of its knowledge, that the subj ect patent, here the 396 Patent, f‘is invali’d
or wiil not be infringed By the manufacture, use or sale of the new drug for which the application
is submitted . . . .” The statute (21 U.S.C. § 3550)(2)(B)(iv)(II)) also requires a Paragraph IV
Notice Letter to “include a detailed statement of the factual and legal basis of the opinion of the
applicant that the patent ié invalid or will not be infringed.” The FDA Ruleé ;nd R_egulationé (21
C.F.R. § 314.95(c)(6)) further require that the detailed statemént include, “(i) [f]or each claim of
a patent alleged not to be infringed, a full aﬁd detailed explanation of why the claim is not
infringed” and “(ii) [f]or each claim of a patent alleged to bbe. invalid or unenforceable, a full and

detailed explanation of the grounds supporting the allegations.”



Case 1:12-cv-06293-RJS Document1 Filed 08/16/12 Page 9 of 14

41.  Lupin alleged in its July 13, 2012 Notice Letter that Claims 1-28 of the
’396 Patent are both invalid and would not be infringed by the commercial manufacture, use,
sale and importation of its proposed product that is the subject of ANDA No. 204131.

42.  Despite this assertion, the July 13, 2012 Notice Letter does not provide the-
full and detailed statement of Lupin’s factual and legal basis to support its non-infringement and
invalidity allegations as to the *396 Patent.

43.  Accordingly, the July 13, 2012 Notice Letter fails to comply with the law,
as specified in 21 U.S.C. § 355(j) and FDA rules and regulations, as spéciﬁed in21 CFR. §
314.95.

44, By filing ANDA No. 204131 under 21 U.S.C. § 355(j) for the purposes of
obtaining approval to engage in the commercial manufactﬁre, use, sale and/or importation of
tablets containing 200 mg of emtricitabine and 300 mg of tenofovir disoproxil fumarate before
the *396 Patent’s expiration, Lupin has committed an act of infringement of the *396 Pa‘;ent
under 35 U.S.C. § 271(e)(2).

45.  On information and belief, Lupin lacked a good faith basis for alleging |
invalidity when ANDA No. 204131 was filed and when the Paragraph IV certification was made.
Lupin’s ANDA and Paragraph IV certification is a wholly unjustified infringemént of the °396
Patent.

46.  Lupin’s submission of ANDA No. 204131 and service of the July 13,
2012 Notice Letter indicates a refusal to change its current coursé of action.

47. On information and belief, the commercial manufacture, use, sale and/or

importation of tablets containing 200 mg of emtricitabine and 300 mg of tenofovir disbprdxil .,
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fumarate for which Lupin seeks approval in ANDA No. 204131, if approved, will infringe one or
more claims of the 396 Patent. .

48.  The July 13, 2012 Notice Letter does not allege and does not address
unenforceability of any claims of the *396 Patent. By not addressing unenforceability of any
claims of the 396 Patent in its July 13, 2012 Notice Letter, Lupin admits that all of the claims_ of
the ’396 Patent are enforceable.

COUNT 3
Infringement of U.S. Patent No. 5,814,639

49, -Plaintiffs repeat and reallege paragr’éphs 1-22 and 24 above as if set forth

herein.
| 50.  Oninformation and belief, ANDA No. 204131 seeks approval to
manufacture, use, sell and import emtricitabine for the purpose of treating HIV iﬁfection.

51. By letter dated July 13, 2012 pursuant to 21 U‘.»S.C. § 355(G)(2)(B)(ii) (the
“July 13, 20i2 Notice Letter”), Lupin notified Plaintiffs that it bhad submitted ANDA No. 204131
to the FDA seeking approval to engage in the commercial manufacture, use, sale and importation
of tablets’ containing 200 mg of emtricitabine and 300 mg of tenofovir disoproxil fumarate prior
to the expiration of the *639 Patent.

52. In its July 13, 2012 Notice Letter, Lupin notified Plaintiffs that, as a part
of ANDA No. 204131, it had filed a certification of the type described in 21 U.S.C. § |
3550)(2)(A)(vii)(IV) (“Paragraph IV”) with respect to the 639 Patent. This statutory section
requires, inter alia, certification by the ANDA applicant, in its opinion and to the best of its
knowledge, that the subje.ct patent, here the 639 Patent, “is invalid or will not be infringed by
the manufacture, use or sale of the new drug for which the application is submitted . . . .” The

statute (21 U.S.C. § 355(G)(2)(B)(iv)(I])) also requires a Paragraph IV Notice Letter to “include a

10
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detailed statement of the factual and legal basis of the opinion of the applicant .that the patent is
invalid or will not be infringed.” The FDA Rules and Regulations (21 C.F.R. § 314.95(c)(6))
further require that the detailed statement include, “(i) [f]or each claim of a patent alleged not to
be infringed, a full and detailed explanation of why the claim is ﬁot infringed” and “(i1) [f]or
each claim of a patent alleged to .be invalid or unenforceable, a full and detailed explanation of
the grounds supporting the allegations.”

53.  Lupin alleged in its July 13, 2012 Notice Letter that Claims 1 and 2 of the
*639 Patent are invalid and therefore not infringed. |

54.  Despite this assertion, the July 13, 2012 Notice Letter does not provide the
full and detailed statement of Lupin’s factual and legal basis to support its non-infringement and
invalidity allegations as to the 639 Patent.

55.  Accordingly, the July 13, 2012 Notice Letter fails to comply with the law,
- as specified in 21 U.S.C. § 355(j) and FDA rules and regulations, as-specified in 21 C.F.R. §
314.95.

56. By filing ANDA No. 204131 under 21 U.S.C. § 355(j) for the purposes of
obtaining approval to engage in the co’mmercial manufacture, use, sale and/or importation of"
tablets containing 200 mg of emtricitabine and 300 mg (;f tenofovir disoproxil fumarate before
the *639 Patent’s expiration, Lupin has committed an act of infringerneht of the 639 Patent
under 35 U.S.C. § 271(e)(2).

57. On information and belief, Lupin lacked a good faith basis for alleging
invalidity when ANDA No. 204131 was filed and when the Paragraph I'V certification was made.
" Lupin’s ANDA and Paragraph IV certification is a wholly unjustified infringement of the *639.

Patent.

11
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58.  Lupin’s submission of ANDA No. 204131 and service of the July 13, -
2012 Notice Letter indicates a refusal to change its current course of action.

59. On information and belief, the commercial manufacture, use, sale and/or
importation of tablets containing 200 mg of emtricitabine and 300 mg of tenofovir disqproxil
fumarate for which Lupin seeks appfoval in ANDA No. 204131, if approved, will infringe one or
more claims of the 639 Patent.

60.  The July 13, 2012 Notice Letter does not allege and does not address
unenforceability of any claims of the ’639 Patent. By not addressing unenforceability of any
claims of the *639 Patent in its July 13, 2012 Notice Letter, Lupin admits that all of the claims of
the *639 Patent are enforceable. |

| 61.  This case is an exceptional one, and Plaintiffé are entitled to an award of
their reasonable attorney fees under 35 U.S.C. § 285. |

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully request the following relief:

(a): A judgment declaring that the effective date of any approval of Lupin’s
ANDA No. 204131 under Section 505(j) of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (21 U.S.C.
§ 355(3)) be a date which is not earlier than the expiration of the 245 Patent or any later date of
exclusivity to which Plaintiffs are or become entitled,;

(b) A judgment declaring that the effective date of any approval of Lupin’s
ANDA No. 204131 under Section 505(j) of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (21 U.S.C.
~ § 355(j)) be a date which is not earlier than the expiration of the *396 Patent or any later date of

exclusivity to which Plaintiffs are or become entitled;

12
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(c) A judgment declaring that the effective date of any approval of Lupin’s
ANDA No. 204131 under Section 505(j) of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (21 U.S.C.
§ 355(j)) be a date which is not earlier than the expiration of the *639 Patent or any later date of
exclusivity to which Plaintiffs are or become entitled,

(d) A judgment declaring that the *245 Patent remains valid, enforceable and |
has been .infringed by Lupin;

(e) A judgment declaring that the *396 Patent remains valid, enforceable and
has been infringed by Lupin;

® A judgment declaring that the 639 Patent remains valid, enforceable and
has been infringed by Lupin;

(2) A permanent injunction against ény infringement of the ’245 Patent by
Lupin, their officers, agents, attorneys and employees, and those acting in privity or contract with
them;

(h) A permanent injunction against any infringement of the *396 Pateﬁt by
Lupin, their officers, agents, attorneys and employees, and those acting in privity or contract with
them;

6)) A permanent injunction against any infringement of the *639 Patent by
Lupin? their officers, agents, attorneys and employees, and those acting in privity or contract with
them;

()] A judgnient that Lupin’s conduct is exceptional in this case;

&) An award of reasonable attorney fees pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 285;

13
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)] To the extent that Lupin has cofnmitted any acts with respect to the subject
matter claimed in the *245 Patent, other than those acts expressly exempted by 35 U.S.C. § 271
(e)(1), an award of damages for such acts, which should be trebled pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284;
(m)  To the extent that Lupin has committed any acts with respect to the subject
matter claimed in the *396 Patent, other than those acts expressly exempted by 35 U.S..C. § 271
(e)(1), an award of damages for such acts, which should be trebled pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284;
(n) To the extent that Lupin has committed any acts with respect to the subject
matter ciaimed in the ’639 Patent, other than those acts'expressly exempted by 35 U.S.C. § 271
(e)(1), an award of damages for such acts, which éhould be trebled pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 284;
(o) Costs and expenses in this action; and

(r) Such other relief as this Court may deem proper.

August 16,2012 | Respectfully’ submitted;

2L [ s

1cholas M, annell
Colleen Tyacy ( CT 377)
Peter Shapiro (PS/8180)
Christopher P. Borello (CB 6164)
FITZPATRICK, CELLA, HARPER
& SCINTO
1290 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10104
Tel: 212-218-2100 -
Fax: 212-218-2200

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
Gilead Sciences, Inc. and Emory
University
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